SUPREME COURT  
STATE OF FLORIDA

1986  
BY: \_\_\_\_\_  
DATE: \_\_\_\_\_

IN RE:

THOMAS C. TODD and :  
PEOPLE AGAINST LEGALIZED :  
LOTTERIES, INC., :

CASE NO. 69,426

Appellants, :

vs. :

HONORABLE GEORGE :  
FIRESTONE and E.X.C.E.L., :  
INC., :

Appelles. :  
\_\_\_\_\_ /

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANTS THOMAS C. TODD  
AND PEOPLE AGAINST LEGALIZED LOTTERIES, INC.

HERBERT R. KRAFT  
1020 East Lafayette Street  
Suite 210  
Tallahassee, Florida 32301  
(904) 877-7139

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This cause is a pre-election challenge to the validity of the placement on the November, 1986, ballot of Proposition 5, "State Operated Lotteries". On July 30, 1986, the Florida Secretary of State, HONORABLE GEORGE FIRESTONE, issued a Certificate of Ballot Position to Proposition 5 (R-4-10).

On August 29, 1986, THOMAS C. TODD and PEOPLE AGAINST LEGALIZED LOTTERIES, INC., filed a Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive relief, seeking to remove Proposition 5 from the ballot. (R-1-3). On September 3, 1986, the Defendant, HONORABLE GEORGE FIRESTONE, filed a response, admitting certification of Proposition 5 for the ballot. (R-11-14). The response further indicated that the Defendant had "no authority to inquire into the legality of the content of the initiative.", and that the Secretary of State would not take any position as to the legality of Proposition 5's content. In Addition, the Secretary of State declined to further appear, and suggested that the political committee who sponsored the "State Operated Lotteries" initiative, E.X.C.E.L., was the appropriate party in interest. (R-13). JOSEPH W. LITTLE, ROBERT T. MANN, and JOHN CARROLL, moved to intervene as Plaintiffs (R-33-34) which was granted by the Circuit

Court on September 24, 1984, (R-54). THOMAS C. TODD and PEOPLE AGAINST LEGALIZED LOTTERIES, INC., moved for a "partial" final judgment on the pleadings on September 9, 1986. (R-15-17), together with a memorandum of law in support. The Motion for partial judgment requested that the Court construe the facial validity of the amendment. The Intervenor, LITTLE, MANN, and CARROLL also submitted argument in support. The Circuit Court accelerated disposition of this cause, and a hearing was scheduled for September 11, 1986. On September 10, 1986, (R-51-52), E.X.C.E.L., INC., moved to intervene. The Circuit Court granted E.X.C.E.L., INC.'S Motion to Intervene (R-53). An answer was filed by E.X.C.E.L., INC., who thereafter moved for final summary judgment (R-91-94). \*After oral argument, the court entered a final judgment (R-Supplemental) denying Plaintiffs all relief. A Notice of Appeal to the District Court of Appeal was filed on October 2, 1986, (R-96). A joint suggestion to the District Court of Appeal to certify this matter the Supreme Court was made by all parties. On October 6, 1986, the District Court of Appeal entered an Order certifying the matter to the Florida Supreme Court.

\*Intervenors, LITTLE, MANN, and CARROLL voluntarily dismissed their portion of this action on September 29, 1986. LITTLE, MANN, and CARROLL then filed an original mandamus action in the Florida Supreme Court.

**B. STATEMENT OF FACTS**

The only facts of record are the issuance of a Certificate of Ballot Position (R-4-10) and the contents of Proposition reproduced on Pages 1 and 2.

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Proposition 5 violates Florida Constitution's Single subject Requirement. Proposition 5, although it uses the words "Education Lottery" and "Education Lottery Trust Fund", has nothing to do with education. However, the use of these terms is a classic logroll: combining gambling with funding of education - two unrelated subjects. Preventing logrolling is the primary reason for the single subject requirement.

Proposition 5 also violates the single subject requirement because of its combining permitting lotteries with a "severability clause", and with the establishment of a "trust fund". Regulation of gambling is a police power function of the Legislature. Establishing "trust funds" for the user fees and profits is a separate function of government. Requiring courts to render a decision leaving the lottery portion of Proposition 5 on the ballot in the event it is multi-subject affects the judicial function of initiatives.

The "State Operated Lotteries" ballot summary violates the requirements of the statutes and case law by failing to reveal the substantial effect that the initiative has on the present constitutional prohibition against lotteries. Further, the summary does not accurately explain the actual affect of Proposition 5, its "severability" clause and its "trust fund". The term "education" which is without function by admission of E.X.C.E.L.

is misleading the electors into believing that this proposition will aid education.

The signatures, pursuant to a verbal proffer made by PALL, were gathered by false statements of the factual import of Proposition 5.

For these reason, the Proposition should be stricken from the ballot.



PROPOSITION 5 VIOLATES THE SINGLE  
SUBJECT REQUIREMENT OF ARTICLE XI, SECTION 3, FL. CONST.

The Florida Constitution limits initiatives to "a single subject and matter directly related thereto. Florida Constitution, Article XI, Section 3. This requirement is strictly construed. Fine vs. Firestone, 448 So.2d 984 (Fla. 1984) at 989.

The following tests are relevant in determining if an initiative is a single subject:

(a) The primary test is whether the initiative is a logroll, Evans at 1354.

(b) Does the initiative affect two functions of government in the same branch, Fine at 990.

(c) Does the initiative affect two functions of government, each in a different branch, Evans vs. Firestone, 457 So.2d 1351 (Fla. 1984).

(d) Does the initiative have a "logical and natural oneness of purpose", Fine at 990.

(e) Does the initiative propose a singular change in government, Id at 987.

(f) Does the initiative allow a vote on a singular change in government, Ibid.

(g) Does the initiative "identify the articles or sections of the constitution substantially affected, Id at 989.

(h) "How an initiative proposal affects other articles or sections of the constitution is an appropriate factor to be considered in determining whether there is more than one subject included in an initiative proposal". Id at 990.

Proposition 5 clearly violates the single subject requirement because it does not meet the tests set forth above. The Proposition in full states:

(a) Lotteries may be operated by the State.

(b) If any subsections of the Amendment of the Florida Constitution are held unconstitutional for containing more than one subject, this Amendment shall be limited to subsection (a) above.

(c) This Amendment shall be implemented as follows:

- (1) On the effective date of this Amendment, the lotteries shall be known as the Florida Education Lotteries. Net proceeds derived from the lotteries shall be deposited to a state trust fund, to be designated The State Education Lotteries Trust Fund, to be appropriated by the Legislature. The schedule may be amended by general law.

Logrolling is "an aggregation of dissimilar provisions (designed) to attract support of diverse groups to assure its passage". Fine, 448 So.2d at 988. The public lacks input through legislators, and the courts also lack a legislative history to aid them in determining the import of an initiative. An "education lottery" (although the word education is a non-functional emblem added to the initiative, see argument p. 7) is a logroll. There is no rational relationship between gambling and education. No more persuasive statements can be made to prove that this is a logroll than Justice Ehrlich's concurring remarks, in Fine vs. Firestone,

It would be difficult to imagine a better illustration of logrolling than the initiative proposal approved in Floridians. Tying increased funding of education to the casino gambling proposal was unarguably an attempt to enlist the support of those concerned with the quality of education in Florida for a measure inherently unrelated to education. Fine, 448 So.2d at 996.

Floridians Against Casino Takeover vs. Let's Help Florida, 363

So.2d 337 (Fla. 1978) approved an initiative described in the quotation above by Justice Ehrlich, in an opinion applying a "broad view" of the single subject requirement. This same "narrow view" would have compelled finding the ethics in government amendment (considered in Weber vs. Smathers, 338 So.2d 819 (Fla. 1976) was five subjects. Floridians Against Casino Takeover, 363 So.2d at 340. Having now adopted a narrow view, the logrolling effect of invoking "education trust funds" and "education lotteries" (although these labels are deceptive, see argument at page 7) cannot be ignored. The very concept of a lottery to aid a specific funding need is a logroll.

Closely related to the question of logrolling is the "functional" test. The proposition has the following functional effects:

- (1) Amending the prohibition against lotteries contained in Article X, Section 7.
- (2) Permitting the legislature to regulate gambling, a police power function fo the legislature. 27 Fl.Jur.2d "Gambling" Section 2.
- (3) Permitting the legislature to appropriate user fees (regulation of user fees is a single function of government, Fine at 991.)
- (4) Establishing a named "trust fund" for proceeds (although it is clearly not a trust fund.)
- (5) Directing the courts to retain subsection

(a) of the proposition should it violate the single subject requirement of Article XI, Section 3.

It is sufficient for the Court to find two subjects, and the analysis above demonstrates the multifarious nature of E.X.C.E.L.'s Proposition 5.

For the same reasons there is no "logical and natural oneness" of purpose. In any permutation clause (a), permitting the lottery has no relationship to clause (b) which directs the Courts to leave clause (a) intact in the event that it is determined to violate the single subject rule. Clause (c) has no relationship to Clauses (a) or (b): the only possible relationship between clause (a) and clause (c) is a cynical political one (discussed more fully in argument Page 8). An initiative to permit gambling by lotteries would have a unity and oneness of purpose. The two additional clauses are entirely divorced from what the sponsors describe as the "functional" effect Proposition 5: to authorize a lottery. This is a devastating admission, and totally proves the failure to limit the initiative to a "single subject".

Factor (e), limiting a proposition to a "singular change" in government is only met by Proposition 5 if clause (b): which directs the effect of court review of the proposition and clause (c) which directs the expenditures to be placed in a "trust fund" are ignored. This E.X.C.E.L. invites this Court to do by describing clauses (b) and (c) of the proposition as surplus and non-functional. The Court must reject this tactic; the lower Court opinion in finding Proposition 5 to be a single subject

refused to consider the severability clause as having any present meaning (R-47). This is a tacit admission that the severability clause, if it has affect, is unrelated to the subjects contained in clauses (a) and (b). The pernicious effect of clause (c) has already been examined, and its lack of relation, other than as a logroll is manifest.

The factor (f) requiring that the amendment allow a vote on a singular change in government is violated both by the misnamed "education" lottery and the "severance" clause. This issue is briefed on Pages 11-12 of this argument.

Factors (g) and (h) are briefed in the second point on Pages 11-12.

For the reasons stated, this Court should find Proposition 5 violates the single subject requirement of Article XI, Section 3.

PROPOSITION 5'S BALLOT SUMMARY VIOLATES  
THE REQUIREMENTS OF F.S. 101.161 AND OF CASE LAW

This states' electors have two protections to insure that the momentous task of constitutional revision is fair and lawful. The strictures of Fl. Const. XI Section 3 limit the initiative to one subject. The Legislature has enacted F.S. 101.161 requiring the sponsor to prepare a 75 word explanation of the substance of the amendment and requiring the sponsor to prepare a title. The ballot summary of Proposition 5 reads:

Ballot summary : The Amendment authorizes the state to operate lotteries. It provides a severance clause to retain the above provision should any subsections be held unconstitutional because of more than one subject. The schedule provides, unless changed by law, for the lotteries to be known as the Florida Education Lotteries and for the net proceeds derived to be deposited in a state trust fund, designated State Education Lotteries Trust Fund, for the appropriation by the Legislature.

The ballot title is "State Operated Lotteries".

Only this title and summary will appear on the ballot. The ballot summary must:

a) Provide actual notice of the amendment's purpose, Askew vs. Firestone, 421 So.2d 151 (Fla. 1982) at Page 155.

b) Clearly tell the voters what the amendment will do, Evans vs. Firestone, 457 So.2d 1351 (Fla. 1984) at Page 1355.

c) Limit its content to legal effect: "The ballot summary should tell the voter the legal effect of the amendment, and no more. The political motivation behind a given change must be propounded outside the voting booth. Evans at 1355.)

d) Accurately inform the voters of the state of present law, particularly any constitutional "trade offs", Askew vs. Firestone, 421 So.2d at 157 (although not implying a "trade off" when one is not caused by the initiative, Evans vs. Firestone,

457 So.2d 1351 (Fla. 1984) at 1355.

e) Identify any article or sections of the Constitution substantially affected, Fine vs. Firestone, 448 So.2d 984 (Fla. 1984) at 989 (e.s.).

The lower Court found that the ballot summary was adequate. (R-47-50). However, this lower Court did not address several of the standards detailed above. Justice Ehrlich in his concurrence in Askew, pointed out that a correct statement of the proposition's import is not sufficient.

In my opinion the proposed ballot summary is deceptive, because although it contains an absolutely true statement, it omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statement made not misleading. Askew vs. Firestone, 421 So.2d at 158.

The lower Court does not go beyond determining if the ballot summary correctly set forth the wording of the proposition (although this was not correctly determined.) Proposition 5's supporters have conceded that the proposition, although it mentions the word "education" actually has nothing to do with education. (Brief of E.X.C.E.L., Pages 16-17, R-88-89). The Circuit Court further held:

Regardless of labels used, it is apparent that education has nothing to do with the proposal and the Legislature may utilize such funds as it sees fit. Indeed, Defendant's brief concedes that the Legislature has full and unfettered access to the lottery funds but hopes the Legislature will "respond" to the "will" of the people and appropriate the fund for education purposes. Of course, the Legislature has no duty legally, constitutionally, morally, ethically, or even politically to so "respond". Order Denying Partial Final Judgment on the Pleadings, Page 2. (R-48).

The effect of Proposition 5 is totally unchanged if the word "education" is excised each time it appears.

In Askew this court struck an initiative although it accurately set forth its effect, because in totality it was misleading. Actual notice is not given in Proposition 5 to the voters and the voters do not receive an explanation of what the amendment will do (factors(a) and (b) listed above.) The surplusage in Proposition 5 should not be in the ballot summary. The only "actual notice" of what the amendment will do would be to establish a lottery, which funds would be placed in the "Education Lotteries Trust Fund", and, that the Courts, if they find a multiplicity of subjects only retain the first subject ("lotteries") and the summary would need to state that the funds do not have to go education. All of the references to education are insidious attempts to mislead and logroll. (See argument Page 10).

On Page 6 of its legal memorandum to the lower Court (R-78) E.X.C.E.L. states that sections (b) and (c) of Proposition 5 are "non-functional". If these parts are purposeless (or useless) why are not the electors so told? Since section (b) and (c) are "non-functional", they should not be in the initiative at all, and the ballot summary must so state to comply with F.S. 101.161.

Thus the term "education" is also non-functional, although it is not so described in the ballot summary. "Education", "trust funds", and all such other terms were included only to add the allure of the illusion of paying for education through gambling to the proposal. (Thus the lottery could be renamed the "Florida Environmental Protection Lottery", and the proposed amendment would have the IDENTICAL legal effect. Education was



chosen by E.X.C.E.L. for its title because it is politically expedient to name the lottery for a powerful constituency. Likewise, the Lottery could be named the Policeman's retirement, Volunteer Fire Department equipment acquisition and helping of little old ladies across the street Lottery" with an appropriate trust fund name with identical legal effect to Proposition 5. These extreme examples prove that E.X.C.E.L. is not fairly treating the voters. The titles, do have meaning, despite E.X.C.E.L.'s statement that they are non-functional or else they would not be placed in the proposition. This Court should not be a party to allowing useless labels to be put onto proposals to increase the political attraction of the proposal. This Court should find,

. . . the ballot language in the instant case appears to have been intentionally drawn to create an erroneous perception of the effect of this constitutional proposal. Concurring opinion of Justice Overton, Evans, 457 So.2d at 1356.

Further, the use of the term "trust fund" is totally unneeded and placed in the summary to confuse and mislead. The proposition does not establish a "trust fund". A "trust fund" is :

A fund by a trustee for the specific purposes of the trust, in a more general sense, a fund which, legally or equitably, is subject to be devoted to a particular purpose and cannot or should not be diverted therefrom Black's Law Dictionary, 4th Edition.

These funds are actually general revenue, to be appropriated by the Legislature. The voters reading the proposition's ballot summary will see the terms "State Education Lotteries Trust Fund", "education lottery" and believe them to mean exactly that.

E.X.C.E.L. INC., has described the terms used as "suggestion"s to the Legislature. (Brief of E.X.C.E.L. at Page 17, R-). They have no place in the proposition's ballot summary. (See factor (c) listed above.) Evans at Page 1355. The insertion of a great deal of "political puffing" in the proposition's summary makes the summary legally invalid. In fact, the only purpose for the use of this "non-functional" language is logrolling, which has been previously discussed. (See Argument Page 2).

Factors (a), (b), and (c) above have been clearly violated by the drafters of the Proposition. The drafters are attempting to load the summary with content that they now disclaim as unneeded or just added to persuade Legislature to take various action. Although it may be good politics it is of the same ilk as the "misinformation" placed in the "Citizens Rights" initiative stricken in Evans vs. Firestone and the lobbying law changes proposed by the Legislature and struck down in Askew vs. Firestone. In totality, the ballot summary utterly fails to deal with the voters with honesty and forthrightness. Considered as a whole, the ballot summary does not set forth plainly that the proposition's only certain legal effect is to establish a lottery. The reference to "state education lottery trust funds" and "state education lotteries" are unneeded and deceptive. If the answer of E.X.C.E.L. is that it is correct because the body of the initiative so states, it is sufficient rebuttal to point out that the ballot summary in Askew regarding lobbying was a correct statement of the content of the initiative, but was nevertheless misleading. (PALL would go further and suggest that there is no

place in Florida's Constitution for non-functional political puffing in initiatives, and that this Court should strike E.X.C.E.L.'s draftsmanship and send a clear message to the drafters of initiatives that such unneeded and misleading items not be included in ballot summaries and initiatives themselves.)

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