OA 10-16.86

Resembly Couls

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JOHN F. CARROLL, JOSEPH W. LITTLE, and ROBERT T. MANN, TAXPAYERS and CITIZENS OF FLORIDA,

Petitioners,

vs.

CASE NO.: 69,410

GEORGE FIRESTONE SECRETARY OF STATE OF FLORIDA, and EXCELLENCE CAMPAIGN: AN EDUCATION LOTTERY, INC. (E.X.C.E.L.), A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION,

Respondents,

IN RE:

PEOPLE AGAINST LEGALIZED LOTTERIES and THOMAS TODD,

Appellants,

vs.

CASE NO.: 69,426

E.X.C.E.L., INC., and THE HONORABLE GEORGE FIRESTONE, Secretary of State,

Appellees.

CONSOLIDATED ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE/RESPONDENT EXCELLENCE CAMPAIGN: AN EDUCATION LOTTERY, INC. (E.X.C.E.L.)

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

I.

THE STATE OPERATED LOTTERIES AMENDMENT EMBRACES ONLY ONE SUBJECT.

Article XI, Section 3 of the Florida Constitution requires that a constitutional amendment proposed by initiative petition "embrace but one subject and matter directly connected

therewith." Article XI, Section 3 was last amended in 1972. Since 1972, the "one subject rule" in initiative petitions has been vigorously litigated in challenges to a "Sunshine Amendment" (Weber v. Smathers, 338 So.2d 819 (Fla. 1976)), a "Casino Gambling Amendment" (Floridians Against Casino Takeover v. Let's Help Florida, 363 So.2d 337 (Fla. 1978)), a "Citizens Choice on Government Revenue Amendment" (Fine v. Firestone, 448 So.2d 984 (Fla. 1984)), and a "Citizens Rights in Civil Actions Amendment" (Evans v. Firestone, 457 So.2d 1351 (Fla. 1984)).

Justice England once observed that the one subject rule "obviously means different things to different, reasonable people." Weber, supra (England, J. concurring). The progression of initiative petition litigation set forth above had produced an ever increasing collection of dissenting, concurring, and special concurring opinions wherein individual justices offer their varying thoughts on what the one subject rule means. Notwithstanding refinements in the Supreme Court's analysis of the one subject rule, and recission from discrete language in earlier opinions, the Article XI, Section 3 cases continue to offer a fundamental analytical basis upon which to judge a one subject challenge.

Since <u>City of Coral Gables v. Gray</u>, 19 So.2d 318 (Fla. 1944), the proper test has been one of function. In <u>Gray</u>, the Court held:

[T]he fact that an amendment may be capable of separation into two or more propositions concerning the value of which diversity of opinion might arise is not alone sufficient to condemn the proposed amendment; provided the proposition submitted may be logically viewed as having a natural relation and connection as component parts or aspects of a single dominant plan or scheme. Unity of object and plan is the universal test, and it is to be looked for in the ultimate end sought, not in the details or steps leading to the end.

Gray, at 320.

The <u>Gray</u> test was cited with approval in <u>Floridians</u>

<u>Against Casino Takeover</u>, <u>supra</u>. Moreover, the <u>Floridians</u> court held that:

If a proposed amendment has but one main purpose and all else is incidental and reasonably necessary to effectuate the main object and purpose contemplated, it is not susceptible to the charge that it contains more than one amendment.

Floridians, at 339.

In more recent cases, the <u>Gray</u> test has been cited with approval as consistent with the proposition that the one subject test is functional and not locational. In <u>Fine</u>, <u>supra</u>, Justice Overton, writing for the majority, reaffirmed the <u>Gray</u> test, and reaffirmed the Court's emphasis in <u>Floridians</u> that the test should include a determination of whether the proposal affects a function of government as opposed to whether the proposal affects a section of the Constitution. As Justice Overton wrote:

The significance of the word "function" as used in Floridians was to point out that the

one subject limitation dealt with a logical and natural oneness of purpose, as opposed to the prior limitation on initiative proposals affecting multiple sections of the Constitution.

Fine, at 990.

From the 1944 <u>Gray</u> opinion to the 1984 <u>Fine</u> opinion, the courts have emphasized the logical and natural oneness of purpose, effecting one governmental function, as the hallmarks of a valid single subject amendment. By that standard, the State Operated Lotteries amendment now before the Court passes the functional test for the single subject limit. The only function of government touched by this proposed amendment is the authority of the State of Florida to operate a lottery. Every other portion of the proposed amendment is incidental and reasonably necessary to effect this main object and purpose, <u>if</u> the legislature chooses to act on the constitutional authority granted by the amendment. Every other portion of the proposed amendment is directly, logically and reasonably related to the function of operating State lotteries.

The petitioners and appellants argue that subsections (b) and (c) are each separate "subjects" that affect separate functions of government. Both allege that subsection (b), the "severability clause," impliedly amends Article V of the Constitution by dictating to the judicial branch a narrow or restrictive scope of judicial review. Subsection (c) is said to affect

the Legislature's appropriation function by establishing a named trust fund.

In both instances, the challengers' arguments are classic attempts to elevate form over substance, and refuted by existing case law.

The argument that subsection (b) is somehow a restraint on the judicial branch of government was disposed of in Fine v.Firestone, supra. The proposed amendment under attack in Fine was the so-called "Citizens Choice On Government Revenues," ultimately found by the court to deal with multiple governmental functions of taxation, user fee services, and the funding of capital improvements with revenue bonds. Printed on the petition form seeking the amendment's position on the ballot, but not included within the text of the amendment or ballot summary, was the following language:

"If any portion of this ballot title, summary and amendment is found to be invalid, the remaining portion shall not be invalidated. If this amendment is found to contain multiple subjects, all references to additional subjects, found after the first subject, shall be invalid, but the remaining portions of the amendment shall not be invalidated."

The Fine court disposed of this language as follows:

This language is not part of the amendment and would not appear on the ballot. Further, such language cannot circumvent this court's responsibility to determine whether the proposed amendment may constitutionally be placed before the voters.

<u>Fine</u>, at 992.

It is abundantly clear from the <u>Fine</u> holding that the courts retain the authority to determine whether a proposed constitutional amendment fails the single subject requirement or fails any other constitutional test. Whatever its failings, subsection (b) cannot be said to have any functional effect on the operation of the judicial branch of government. <u>Fine</u>, <u>supra</u>. As observed by the trial court, "The provisions of a proposal, unadopted, have no legal efficacy and in no wise inhibit the scope of review by this or any other court."

The Florida Supreme Court has held that the quality of a proposed amendment's draftsmanship is not an appropriate subject for judicial review. Weber, supra, at 822. Based on the Fine holding, there can be no doubt that the severance clause of subsection (b) is ultimately non-functional -- the function of the judicial branch's review of a proposed constitutional amendment challenge cannot be circumvented, altered or affected by a severance clause. At worst, subsection (b) is inartful, surplus language chosen to emphasize the singular intent and purpose of the amendment -- the authority to operate a state lottery. The argument that anomalous or surplus language should not appear in the Florida Constitution is political argument improperly directed to the quality of draftsmanship and the merits of the pro-If the language ultimately has no functional effect on posal. the operation of government (and it does not), it may not be used

to manufacture a "second subject" challenge to a valid single subject amendment.

In like manner, subsection (c), the amendment Schedule, has no functional effect on government. By its plain terms, the implementing schedule contained in subsection (c) does nothing more than provide an initial name for the authorized lotteries, initially name a trust fund to receive the net proceeds derived from the lotteries, and provide for lottery revenue appropriation by the Legislature. Subsection (c) is wholly dependent on the Legislature's implementation of the authority granted in subsection (a). Moreover, subsection (c) provides that the entire schedule may be amended by general law.

On its face, the subsection (c) Schedule provides no functional limitation on the Legislature's discretion as to the implementation or operation of the lottery authorized by this amendment. Referring again to the "one subject and matter directly connected therewith" language in Article XI, Section 3, the implementation schedule is transitional, incidental and reasonably necessary to effectuate the main object and purpose contemplated by the amendment. The implementation schedule clearly has a natural relation and connection to the dominant purpose of the amendment, but standing alone has no binding functional effect on any unit or branch of State government.

The Court need look no further than <u>Floridians Against</u> Casino Takeover v. Let's Help Florida, 363 So.2d 337 (Fla. 1978),

to defeat the argument that the implementation schedule contained in subsection (c) is another "subject" within the State Operated Lotteries amendment. The proposed amendment under consideration in Floridians authorized state regulated, privately operated casino gambling in specific geographical areas and directed the anticipated tax revenues from the casino operations to specific education and local law enforcement functions. The proposal was consistent with pre-existing provisions in the Constitution which earmark or allocate specific revenues to specific purposes, i.e., pari-mutuel taxes (Art. VII, §7); motor vehicle fuel taxes (Art. XII, $\S9(2)(c)$; and motor vehicle license taxes (Art. XII, §9(2)(d)). In a Per Curiam opinion, the Floridians court held that the legalization of casino gambling, its taxation and the dedication of revenues to specific purposes did not violate the single subject rule.

The Supreme Court revisited the <u>Floridians</u> holding in <u>Fine v. Firestone</u>, <u>supra</u>. Justice Overton, a member of the <u>Floridians</u> majority, wrote the majority opinion in <u>Fine</u>. <u>Fine</u> affirmed the <u>Floridians</u> court's holding that the Casino Gambling Amendment constituted a single subject. Thus, although the <u>Fine</u> court did recede from certain language in <u>Floridians</u>, the court did not recede from its ultimate decision in <u>Floridians</u> that the casino gambling proposal met the single subject requirement. Nor did the <u>Fine</u> court recede from its decision in <u>Weber</u> determining that the Ethics in Government amendment met the single subject

requirement. The fact that <u>Floridians</u> and <u>Weber</u> remain viable precedents as to their ultimate holding was again pointed out by Justice Overton in his special concurring opinion in <u>Evans v.</u> Firestone, supra. Justice Overton wrote:

It is important to note that, although we have receded from certain language in Floridians, we have not retreated from our decision in Floridians determining that the casino gambling proposal meets the single subject requirement, nor have we receded from our decision in Weber determining that the ethics-in-government proposal meets the single-subject requirement.

Evans, at 1357 (Overton, J., concurring).

The State Operated Lotteries amendment survives a one subject challenge when compared with the challenges and holdings in Floridians and Weber. The Floridians court held that an amendment which authorized an activity, taxed it, and dedicated the revenues to a specific purpose and geographical location was single subject amendment. Contrast the State Operated Lotteries amendment, which does not contain the constitutionally inviolate link between the authority to conduct lotteries and the mandatory dedication of its revenues. The State Operated Lotteries amendment merely authorizes the State operation of lotteries, then provides an implementing schedule which names the lotteries and a trust fund within which to deposit the net proceeds, if the a11. lotteries authorization is implemented The at implementation is further subject to the Legislature's right to

appropriate funds, change the names, or otherwise amend the entire implementing schedule.

The State Operated Lotteries amendment pre-empts a multi-subject challenge by removing all anticipated allegations of encroachment upon the legislative function. By preserving the Legislature's control over lottery implementation and dedication of revenues, the amendment is one step removed from the Floridians proposal which was and is, under the most recent cases, a single subject.

The single subject challenge is without merit.

II.

THE STATE OPERATED LOTTERIES AMENDMENT BALLOT SUMMARY COMPLIES WITH FLORIDA STATUTES §101.161.

Florida Statutes §101.161(1) reads as follows:

Whenever a constitutional amendment or other public measure is submitted to the vote of the people, the substance of such amendment or other public measure shall be printed in clear and unambiguous language on the ballot after the list of candidates, followed by the word "yes" and also by word "no," and shall be styled in such a manner that a "yes" vote will indicate approval of the proposal and a "no" vote will indicate rejection. The wording of the substance of the amendment or other public measure and the ballot title to appear on the ballot shall be embodied in the joint resolution, constitutional revision commission proposal, constitutional convention proposal, or enabling resolution or ordinance. The substance of the amendment or

other public measure shall be an explanatory statement, not exceeding 75 words in length, of the chief purpose of the measure. The ballot title shall consist of a caption, not exceeding 15 words in length, by which the measure is commonly referred to or spoken of.

The three leading cases on ballot summary challenges are Askew v. Firestone, 421 So.2d 151 (Fla. 1982), Grose v. Firestone, 422 So.2d 303 (Fla. 1982), and Evans v. Firestone, 457 So.2d 1351 (Fla. 1984).

Again, the petitioners and appellants must show by clear and convincing evidence that the State Operated Lotteries ballot summary fails to inform the voter, in clear and unambiguous language, of the chief purpose of the measure. Again, the parties challenging this amendment have failed to meet their high burden.

In <u>Askew</u>, the ballot summary test was alternatively described as follows:

Simply put, the ballot must give the voter fair notice of the decision he must make

... The people who are asked to approve them, must be able to comprehend the sweep of each proposal from a fair notification in the proposition itself that is neither less nor more extensive than it appears to be.

The purpose of §101.161 is to assure that the electorate is advised of the true meaning and ramifications of an amendment

Fair notice in terms of a ballot summary must be actual notice consisting of a clear and unambiguous explanation of the measure's chief purpose. By any measure set forth in Florida Statutes §101.161 or the cases which construe it, the State Operated Lotteries ballot summary gives the voter fair and full knowledge of the amendment's chief purpose, so as to enable the voter to cast his ballot intelligently.

Both the appellants and the petitioners torture the clear and unambiguous language of the summary, particularly the language concerning the schedule, to suggest confusion and ambiguity where there is none. There is certainly no confusion to the fact the implementing schedule which names lotteries and names the trust fund into which net lottery proceeds flow can be "changed by law." There is certainly no confusion that the net lottery proceeds are "for appropriation by the Legislature." The ballot summary gives the voter fair notice of the amendment's chief purpose, and the decision he must make, as required by Askew. Does the voter want the State to be authorized to operate a lottery? The summary's explanation of the severance clause serves clear notice that the authority to operate a lottery is the amendment's chief purpose. If the voters favors the authority to operate a lottery, and the lottery is implemented by the Legislature, does the voter favor the name Florida Education Lotteries? If the voter favors a lottery, does the voter want the net proceeds to initially flow to a trust fund known the State Education Lotteries as Trust Fund. for appropriation by the Legislature?

Without the authority to operate a lottery, all issues as to its name or the disposition of revenues are moot. Again, the chief purpose of the amendment is the authority of the State to operate a lottery, and this purpose is made eminently clear to the voter by the text of the ballot summary. As observed by the trial court, the ballot summary contains no representation that monies generated by the lotteries would be irrevocably earmarked for education.

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